ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 7, 2017
3:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator David W/ son

Senat or Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Denni s Egan

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 1

Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund, establishing the earnings
reserve account, and relating to the permanent fund divi dend.

- MOVED SJR 1 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 1

Proposing an anmendnment to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to voting procedure and abstention from
vot i ng.

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SJR 1

SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM GUARANTEE PERM FUND DI VI DEND
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWBKI

01/ 09/ 17 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 09/ 17 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 09/ 17 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 09/ 17 (S) M NUTE( STA)

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2017



03/ 07/ 17 (S) STA AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SCR 1
SHORT TI TLE: UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOTI NG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GARDNER

02/ 01/ 17 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 17 (S) STA, JUD
03/ 07/ 17 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR Bl LL W ELECHOWSKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SJR 1.

CLEM TILLI ON, representing self
Hal i but Cove, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

JANEL DOCKENDORF, representing self
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

JAMES SQUYRES, representing self
Del t ana, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

JULI ET STOESSEL, representing self
Tok, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 1.

NOCRVAN EGOLF, representing self
Tok, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 1.

PEGGY CLEVENCER, representing self
Tok, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

JACK CLEVENCER, representing self
Tok, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJIR 1.

DAVI D RI CHARD LUNTZ, representing self
Del ta Junction, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

JON FAULKNER, representing self
Hormer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJIR 1.

DAVI D OTNESS, representing self
Cordova, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

BETH FREAD, representing self
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 1.

PAM GOODE, representing self
Del t ana, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

KAREN TERRY, representing self
Chugi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SIR 1.

STEVE ST. CLAIR, representing self
Wasill a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of SIR 1.

KENNETH MCLECD, representing self
Nort h Pol e, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJR 1.

KURT SCHM DT, representing self
Del ta Junction, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SJIR 1.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SCR 1.

JERRY ANDERSQN, Admi ni strator

The Sel ect Committee on Legislative Ethics
Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SCR 1.

SAMANTHA HARRI S, St af f
Senat or Gar dner

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3-

March 7, 2017



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SCR 1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:32: 23 PM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Egan, G essel, Coghill, WIson, and Chair
Dunl eavy.

SJR 1- CONST AM  GUARANTEE PERM FUND DI VI DEND

3:32: 53 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the consideration of SIJR 1.

3:33:16 PM

SENATOR BILL WELECHOABKI, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau
Al aska, sponsor of SJR 1, said the resolution would put before
the Al aska voters an anmendment to Article IX, Section 15 of the
Al aska Constitution to do the foll ow ng:

1. Place the current fornmula for <calculating the Pernmanent
Fund Di vidend (PFD) into the constitution.
2. Require that there be inflation proofing.

SENATOR COGHILL addressed inflation proofing and pointed out
that Senator Welechowski would leave it up to a "matter of
law." He referenced Section 2(c), "The Legislature shall provide
by law for a transfer from the earnings reserve account of the
fund sufficient to offset the effect of inflation on the
principal of the fund during that fiscal year." He asked Senator
W el echowski if he considered tying inflation proofing to the
Consuner Price Index (CPl).

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that his original intent was to put
the statute's exact |anguage into the constitution. He disclosed
that Legislative Legal said using the exact |anguage was a | ot
to add to the constitution and recomended that the statute's
exact |anguage not be used. He opined that if the |egislation
passes and voters approve it, then the existing statute would
still control, and the Legislature could change that at any
time, just like what the Legislature can do now.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2017



SENATOR COGHILL comented that putting SIJR 1 into the
constitution and using the earnings reserve for governnent would
have an inpact on the dividend. He asked Senator Wel echowski to
address the resolution's inpact on the dividend and its
"constitutional right balance.”

3:35: 54 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI replied that all the resolution does is put
the dividend formula into the constitution. He pointed out that
the PFD is currently considered a right in statute. He admtted
that stating a right statutorily does not confer the sanme degree
of right as a constitutional situation would. He reiterated that
the resolution is not declaring a right, but rather it 1is
declaring the fornmula is set in the constitution and the
inflation proofing is set in the constitution. He opined that
the resolution does not change the |legal status, but nmakes it
more of a right to substantive procedural due process; that's
what typically occurs in a constitutional right that s
established is nore of an ability to claim a |egal due process,
a procedural due process. He specified that what is gained is
just putting the dividend fornmula into the constitution. He
enphasi zed that his intent is not to confer anyone an additional
right.

He pointed out that the statute currently says there is a |lega
obligation for the Permanent Fund Corporation to transfer funds
from the earnings reserve to the dividend fund, sonething that
he believes is illegal and is currently being contested in
judiciary. He remarked that the statutory dedication that the
Legi slature set up would confer a simlar right that currently
exists. He sunmmarized that his intent was to put the current
statutes into the constitution and not change anyone's rights
but to sinply codify it in the constitution so that people know
that they are going to get their PFD every year without it being
vet oed.

He opined that if the Legislature passes a permanent fund
restructuring with a guarantee for a PFD, the dividend cannot be
guaranteed unless it is put into the constitution. He asserted
that putting the guarantee into the constitution will engender
trust by the people of Aaska and a fair tradeoff for
restructuring the permanent fund.

SENATOR COGHI LL replied that many of Senator W el echowski's

points were legitimte, but sees the resolution as creating
ot her structural problens.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2017



3:39:45 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY opened public testinmny on SIR 1.

3:40: 09 PM

CLEM TILLION, representing self, Halibut Cove, Al aska, testified
in support of SIJR 1. He asked that the Legislature not change
anyt hing and obey the law as it is witten. He pointed out that
the Al aska Per manent Fund Corporation is statutorily required to
take out inflation proofing before approving 50 percent of the
earnings to be sent to the Departnent of Revenue. He opi ned that
changing the |aw makes the permanent fund nore vulnerable to
destruction.

3:42:33 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL asked M. Tillion to clarify if he is in favor
of SJR 1.

MR. TILLION enphasized that he is in favor of SJR 1 if the
resolution does not change the law as it currently stands and
puts it into the constitution where it bel ongs.

3:44: 34 PM

JANEL DOCKENDORF, representing self, Wsilla, Al aska, testified
in support of SJR 1. She said the PFD should be left the way it
iS.

3:45: 41 PM

JAMES SQUYRES, representing self, Deltana, Alaska, testified in
support of SJR 1. He said he supports the current calcul ation of
the PFD. He suggested that the resolution be passed imediately
for conparison to the permanent fund bills currently under
consi derati on.

3:47:11 PM

JULI ET STOESSEL, representing self, Tok, Alaska, testified in
support of SJR 1. She set forth that the PFD needs to be saved
because the permanent fund is Al askan's noney.

3:48: 25 PM

NOCRVAN EGOLF, representing self, Tok, Alaska, testified in
support of SJR 1. He asked that the current statute be placed
into the constitution.

3:49: 23 PM

PEGGY CLEVENGER, representing self, Tok, Al aska, testified in
support of SJR 1. She asked that the statute be added to the
constitution.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2017



3:50: 46 PM
JACK CLEVENGER, representing self, Tok, Alaska, testified in
support of SJIR 1.

3:52: 03 PM

DAVI D RI CHARD LUNTZ, representing self, Delta Junction, Al aska,
testified in support of SIJR 1. He asked that the people of
Al aska be allowed to vote on the neasure.

3:53:28 PM
JON FAULKNER, representing self, Homer, Alaska, testified in
support of SIJR 1. He believes that the current PFD programis a
right of the citizens and that Al askans have a right to vote on
t he nmeasure.

3:55:55 PM

DAVI D OINESS, representing self, Cordova, Alaska, testified in
support of SIJR 1. He said the state is in a very inportant
juncture and he considered SJR 1 to be the nobst inportant item
to have cone along in a long tine.

3:58: 52 PM

BETH FREAD, representing self, Palner, Al aska, testified in
support of SIJR 1. She set forth that SJR 1 is critical to the
ongoi ng fiscal health of Alaska's future.

4.:02:15 PM

PAM GOODE, representing self, Deltana, Al aska, testified in
support of SJR 1. She stated that she supported keeping the
PFD s current calculation. She asserted that the constitution
was witten for the people to hold the governnent accountable.
She said she does not |look at the PFD as an entitlenment because
the PFD bel ongs to the people.

4:04:19 PM

KAREN TERRY, representing self, Chugiak, Alaska, testified in
support of SIJR 1. She said she did not support wusing a
percent age- of -market-value fornmula to determne the PFD. She
opined that Alaskans want the current PFD fornmula in the
constitution due to excessive spending by the Legislature and
possi bl e vetoes. She said a constitutional anmendnent is the only
way to assure that the PFD is protected, and Al aska's unique
| egacy is preserved for future generations.

4:07:59 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2017



STEVE ST. CLAIR, representing self, Wasilla, Al aska, testified
in opposition of SIR 1. He remarked that enshrining the PFD in
the constitution is a good thing, but added that there are parts
in resolution that he did not like. He opined that inflation
proofing is unnecessary because investnents in the permanent
fund are already inflation proofed and previously proposed 50-50
plans for wusing the permanent fund do not include inflation
pr oof i ng.

4:09: 34 PM

KENNETH MCLEQOD, representing self, North Pole, Al aska, testified
in support of SJR 1. He asserted that the permanent fund should
not be changed. He said any changes to the permanent fund shoul d
go before the people of Al aska.

4:11: 00 PM

KURT  SCHM DT, representing self, Delta Junction, Al aska,
testified in support of SIJR 1. He asserted that the resolution
maintains and clarifies procedures that govern the PFD and
prevents abuse of the fund. He set forth that the people of
Al aska should decide their fate and vote on SIJR 1. He stated
that he disagreed with one Senate nenber who recently said that
the people really don't know the issues and the Legislature
should not let themvote in such matters as the PFD.

4:13: 06 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY cl osed public testinmny on SIR 1.

4:13:22 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SJR 1, version 30-LS0104\D, from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached fiscal
not e(s).

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there was an objection.

SENATOR COGHI LL objected and explained that he is not a big fan
of putting SJR 1 in the constitution. He stated that there are
constitutional principles in SJR 1 that he does not understand.
He noted that there is public support, but said the resolution
woul d create a tension between using any of the earnings reserve
and the dividend.

SENATOR COGHI LL renoved hi s objection.
4:14: 25 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that w thout objection, SJR 1 noved
fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2017



4:14: 38 PM
At ease.

SCR 1- UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOT| NG

4:16: 14 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY called the commttee back to order and announced
t he considerati on of SCR 1.

4:16: 48 PM

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SCR 1, set forth that SCR 1 can be described by a
gquote from "To Kill a Mockingbird,”" "The one thing that doesn't
abide by mpjority rule is a person's conscience."

She said the Legislature relies on Uniform Rule 34(b) when it
comes to conflict of interest for |legislators' voting. She
summari zed that Uniform Rule 34(b) says a nenber can ask for
unani nous consent that he or she be excused from voting because
they have a conflict of interest and then the menber describes
their conflict of interest. She explained that theoretically if
nobody objects, the person is allowed not to vote. She pointed
out that in her years in the Legislature, someone in the body
has always objected and the presiding officer says the person
must vot e.

She noted that the conflict of interest rule has regularly been
an issue with the public. She disclosed that there have been 13
bills and resolutions that have tried to address the issue of
conflict of interest in voting since 2007 and none have passed.
She revealed that she has addressed a variety of ideas and
talked to legislators, but she has not found a good solution.
She said the bottom line is a person's conscious should be the
gui de.

She explained that SCR 1 proposes to sinply require that when a
person stands up and asks to be excused for voting, describes
the conflict of interest and sonebody objects, all three parts
beconme part of the record. She noted that she has clained a
conflict of interest on things that she knew were not really a
conflict of interest; however, she pointed out that nobody wants
to be accused of failing to disclose. She detailed that she has
clainmed a conflict of interest regarding real estate because her
daughter sells real estate as well as claimng a conflict for
her son-in-law because he works for an oil conpany. She opined
that legislators tend to over-disclose to "cover our bases.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 7, 2017



SENATOR GARDNER set forth that she is trying to solve the
conflict of interest problem so that when a person has a genuine
conflict there ultimately is a path. She said she wants to
change the culture because the culture is to always make people
vote. She asserted that a person's conscious should hold if
there really is a conflict of interest.

She stated that SCR 1 is a clear proposal to just nake a
conflict of interest part of the record. She remarked that the
resolution is a "sunshine neasure" that is not conplex or hard
t o under st and.

4:20:13 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Senator Gardner for tackling the
conflict of interest issue and stated that the subject has been
a conundrum for rmany years. He agreed that putting a
legislator's conflict of interest on the record is a good idea.

He stated that the final sentence has sonme good parts and bad
parts:

Upon a nenber's request to be excused from voting, the
clerk or secretary shall record in the journal the
menber requesting to be excused, the stated reason for
the request, and, if an objection to the request is
made, the nmenber or nenbers who objected.

He said SCR 1 is one good way of saying that if a legislator is

going to declare a conflict of interest, at |east the
declaration will be a matter of record. He expressed that he is
gr at ef ul t hat Senat or Gar dner "wondered out into this
territory."

SENATOR GARDNER replied that her resolution is, "Just the toe
into the deep water."

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the committee could hear from M.
Anderson from Legislative Ethics and noted that she was
interested in his opinion on the |egislation.

4:21:29 PM

JERRY  ANDERSCN, Admi ni strat or, The  Sel ect Conmittee on
Legislative Ethics, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
explained that the SCR 1 is fromthe Uniform Rules and not from
the Legislative Ethics Act itself. He detailed that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2017



Legislative Ethics Act statute references the Uniform Rules and
that is the only connection with the Legislative Ethics Act.

4:22:40 PM

SAMANTHA HARRI'S, Staff, Senator Berta Gardner, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, explained that M. Anderson was
asked to be available if the conmttee's conversation entered
the Legislature's ethics laws. She pointed out that there is
sone docunentation that occurs when a legislator declares a
conflict, but the nature of the conflict is not recorded, and
the practice is that if multiple objections are nmade the record

will just say, "objections were made." She added that if the
Senate secretary or chief clerk can discern who the |egislator
was that objected, on occasion they wll record who made the

obj ection, but the act is not always the practice.

She disclosed that |egislative research was unable to determ ne
any instance in the Alaska Legislature's history when unani nous
consent was given for a declaration of a conflict of interest.
She added that the National Conference of State Legislatures
provided a summary of voting recusal provisions and in the end
the summation was unable to identify any other state that dealt
with conflict of interest declarations as Al aska where unani nbus
consent was required.

M5. HARRI'S summari zed that SCR 1 seeks to put nore conflict of
i nterest declarations on the record as a matter of transparency.

4: 25: 00 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY held SCR 1 in conmmittee.

4:25:43 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Dunleavy adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 4:25 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2017



